






 

 
90 7th Street, Suite 4-600 
San Francisco, CA 94103-6705 
PHONE: (415) 437-7820 
EMAIL: CAS-SF@psc.hhs.gov 

 

October 26, 2020 
 

Jay Cleveland, Chief Operating Officer 
State Accounting Enterprise 
Iowa Department of Administrative Services 
Hoover State Office Building, 3rd Floor 
Des Moines, IA 50319 

Dear Mr. Cleveland, 

This letter is in response to Marlys Gaston, Deputy Auditor of State’s, email requesting our 
office to provide formal correspondence summarizing the results of our review of the Fiscal 
Year Ended (FYE) June 30, 2019 Statewide Cost Allocation Plan (SWCAP). The FY 2019 
SWCAP was based upon the actual costs for FYE June 30, 2017. 

 
Since Federally supported awards are performed within the individual operating agencies, there 
needs to be a process whereby these central services costs can be identified and assigned to 
benefitting activities on a reasonable and consistent basis. The central services cost allocation 
plan provides this process.  In accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix V, each state is 
required to submit a Plan to the Department of Health and Human Services for each year in 
which it claims central costs under Federal awards.  The Plan will include all central services 
costs (either as a billed or an allocated service).  For the billed services, the Plan should include 
a description of the service, a schedule of current rates and a schedule comparing the total 
revenues (including imputed revenues) generated by the service to the allowable costs of the 
service.  In addition, the revenues must consist of all revenues generated by the service, 
including unbilled and uncollected revenues.  If some users were not billed for the services (or 
were not billed at the full rate for that class of users), a schedule showing full imputed revenues 
associated with these users must be provided. 

 
During our review of the SWCAP, we determined that the Office of Auditor of State (OAS), a 
billed service, did not bill certain State agencies, and the State and Local agencies were not billed 
at the same rates. As a result, we imputed revenues for the unbilled and uncollected services. 
Initially, OAS explained that they are not providing audit services on a “centralized basis”, and 
OAS is not allowed by State code to allocate CAFR audit costs by direct billing or by other 
means to all agencies in the State.  It was stated that OAS has a vendor relationship with the 
other State agencies when it comes to audit services.  Additionally, it was said that 
approximately 10% of the OAS budget comes from State appropriation. The remainder of OAS 
revenues come from (i) billings to certain (not all) State agencies and local governments for audit 
services, (ii) from filing fees collected when local governments file their reports with the OAS 
office, and (iii) from periodic examination fees collected from smaller cities within the State 
that perform AUPs in accordance with the Iowa Code. Further, it was explained that the Local 
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Governments can choose their auditor. They can hire OAS to perform their annual audit or they 
can hire a private CPA firm.  Since the Local governments are not obligated to choose OAS, 
OAS initially had a concern about whether the administrative costs incurred should be billed to 
the local governments. 

 
On May 1, 2020, we e-mailed our explanation of the Federal requirements for OAS’s billed 
services, with references to the HHS Implementation Guide for State, Local and Indian Tribal 
Governments (ASMB C-10) – see Attachment. We subsequently explained to OAS that an 
adjustment was made to include the imputed revenue for unbilled and uncollected services.  As a 
result of this adjustment, the Federal share of the excess balance was estimated to be $60,000 for 
FYE June 30, 2017.  The Federal share was calculated using a Federal Financial Percentage 
(FFP) of 10%. The FFP was provided by a representative of the Iowa Department of 
Administrative Services during a prior proposal review. In order to identify the actual FFP by 
fiscal year, OAS should calculate the Federal share based upon the Federal share of the actual 
billings by customer (state department or local government).  The issue of unbilled and 
uncollected revenues continues to exist, as a result, the excess fund balance continues to grow.  
It was estimated that the cumulative Federal share of the excess retained earnings would increase 
to $350,000 by FYE June 30, 2019. 

 
In our letter dated August 26, 2020 (which the State counter-signed), approving the State’s 
SWCAP, we identified an excess retained earnings balance for OAS as of June 30, 2017. The 
excess retained earnings resulted from our adjustment included the imputed revenues for the 
unbilled and uncollected services. We did not request the State to provide a refund for the Federal 
share of the excess balance. Instead, the State has agreed to refund the Federal share if the excess 
balance is not eliminated by FYE June 30, 2022. 

 
OAS representatives informed us that without the legislature’s approval, they will not be able to 
bill all State agencies or bill the Local governments the same rate as the State agencies.  It is our 
understanding that in February 2020, the OAS representative submitted a proposal to the 
legislature that will reduce their appropriation and require OAS to bill all State agencies for their 
audit and single audit work.  If the legislature does not approve the OAS proposal, OAS will be 
required to refund the Federal share of any excess retained earning balance as of FYE 2022 and 
subsequent years. 

 
We will continue to communicate and work with the State on any issues identified during our 
annual Plan review.   If there are any questions regarding this letter, please contact Karen Wong 
of my staff at 415-437-7820. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Arif Karim, Director 
Cost Allocation Services 
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